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2/5/18 CCPC Hearing Date 2/15/18

STAFF REPORT

TO: COLLIER COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

FROM:      ZONING DIVISION; GROWTH MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

       

HEARING DATE: FEBRUARY 15, 2018

SUBJECT: LDCA-PL-20160003642, MINI-TRIANGLE

______________________________________________________________________________

APPLICANT/AGENT:

Applicant: Agent:

Real Estate Partners International, LLC Robert J. Mulhere, FAICP

1415 Panther Lane Hole Montes, Inc.

Naples, FL 34109 950 Encore Way

Naples, FL 34110

REQUESTED ACTION:

To have the Collier County Planning Commission (CCPC) consider an application for a Land 

Development Code (LDC) amendment to Section 4.06.02 – Standards for Development in Airport 

Zones.   

This amendment applies to lands currently owned by the Collier County Community 

Redevelopment Agency

GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION:

The proposed LDC Amendment is associated with a companion Growth Management Plan (GMP) 

amendment (PL-20160003084), which creates a new “Mini-Triangle Mixed Use Subdistrict” in 

the Future Land Use Element of the GMP, and a companion Mixed-Use Planned Unit 

Development (MPUD) rezoning request (PL-20160003054). The proposed Mini-Triangle Mixed 

Use Subdistrict is generally located at the intersection of U.S. 41, Davis Boulevard, and 

Commercial Drive in the Bayshore Gateway Triangle Redevelopment Area.

PURPOSE/DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:

As stated in the application, this LDC Amendment request is intended to accomplish the 

following:
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To expressly identify an exemption (applicable to the Mini Triangle project) to the 

LDC Airport Zone height limitations, generally utilizing the same format as was 

previously used to identify an exemption for the Marco Shores Golf Course 

Community, and to renumber/reformat the related paragraphs.

The proposed LDC Amendment (see Attachment 1 – Application and LDC Amendment Request) 

establishes an exemption from the Standards for Development in Airport Zones for the proposed 

Mini-Triangle Mixed Use Subdistrict in order to support the Collier County Community 

Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Plan for a Catalyst project in the Bayshore/Gateway 

Redevelopment Area. The companion MPUD petition establishes maximum building heights 

which exceed the standards in LDC section 4.02.06 and the applicant seeks to add this exemption 

in the LDC to ensure there is no confusion regarding allowable building height for the project in 

the future.

GROWTH MANAGEMENT PLAN (GMP) CONSISTENCY:

When reviewing LDC Amendments, LDC section 10.02.09 establishes that, “the LDC may only 

be amended in such a way as to preserve the consistency of the LDC with the Growth Management 

Plan.” Comprehensive Planning staff has found the proposed LDC Amendment to be consistent 

with the Future Land Use Element of the Collier County GMP, contingent upon the companion 

GMP Amendment being adopted and in effect. Accordingly, the LDC Amendment ordinance 

should have an effective date linked to the effective date of the GMP Amendment.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

When reviewing LDC Amendments, LDC Section 10.02.09 also establishes that, “amendments to 

the LDC may be made no more than twice during the calendar year.” No other LDC Amendments 

have been made this calendar year. 

While there are no other specific criteria applicable to LDC Amendments, Zoning staff considers 

a variety of legal issues, planning principles, internal consistency of the LDC, and other guidance 

when evaluating LDC Amendment requests. Staff considered issues related to building height and 

land use restrictions as described in the following sections, when reviewing the proposed LDC 

Amendment.

Building height

LDC Sections 4.02.06 A-K establish the maximum height for structures or obstructions within 

several “imaginary surfaces.” The proposed LDC Amendment eliminates the height limitations in 

these sections for the Mini-Triangle project. The proposed LDC Amendment seeks to clarify that 

once adopted, the MPUD will be the controlling regulation regarding maximum building height 

for the project.

Additionally, all development within the County’s Airport Zones is required to notify the Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA). In response, the FAA has issued a “Determination of No Hazard” 

for three proposed structures in the Mini-Triangle project. The “Determination of No Hazard” 

letters identify that the structures “would not have a substantial adverse effect on the safe and 

efficient utilization of the navigable airspace by aircraft or on any air navigation facility and would 
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not be a hazard to air navigation.” Finally, the Naples Airport Authority (NAA) Board has also 

provided input on the project in a letter dated September 26, 2016, which states that the NAA 

Board will not object to the proposed project subject to several conditions (see Attachment 2). 

Finally, the proposed amendment to LDC Section 4.02.06 limits the scope of the exemption to that 

which is allowed by the FAA’s “Determination of No Hazard” or any subsequent letters and the 

height requirements of the proposed MPUD, both of which establish a maximum building height 

of 168 feet above mean sea level (AMSL). Given that the maximum height for the project is 

established in the MPUD, the LDC Amendment is not necessary to achieve the applicant’s stated 

goal of allowing buildings taller than 150 feet. The inclusion of this exemption from LDC Section 

4.02.06 does not create any conflict with any other LDC provision, and may provide additional 

clarity regarding the applicable standards throughout the life of the project. Therefore, staff has no 

objection to the proposed exemption from the LDC’s maximum height standards in LDC Sections 

4.02.06 A-K.

Land use restrictions

LDC Section 4.02.06 M includes land use restrictions applicable to development within airport 

zones. Given that the requested exemption is limited to the height requirements within the section, 

the land use restrictions in LDC Section 4.02.06 M will still apply to the Mini-Triangle Project.

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Collier County Code of Laws Section 2-1037 charges the Development Services Advisory 

Committee (DSAC) with, “[providing] input to staff regarding the creation of new rules, processes 

and procedures associated with the development industry,” and with, “[reviewing] proposed 

ordinances and codes that may affect the community development and environmental services 

division prior to their submittal to the Board of County Commissioners for approval.” Accordingly, 

DSAC reviews and provides recommendations on all LDC Amendments prior to Board approval.

The Development Services Advisory Committee-Land Development Review (DSAC-LDR) 

Subcommittee reviewed the petition on November 13, 2017, and unanimously recommended 

approval of the amendment (with one abstention).

The full DSAC reviewed the petition on December 6, 2017, and unanimously recommended 

approval of the amendment (with one abstention).

COUNTY ATTORNEY OFFICE REVIEW:  

This Staff Report was reviewed by the County Attorney’s Office on February 2, 2018.
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STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the CCPC forward Petition LDCA-PL20160003642 to the Board with a 

recommendation of approval.

Attachments: 

1. Application and LDC Amendment Request

2. NAA Board letter of no objection
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